
Summons to Meeting

Thursday 15 June 2017

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Friday 23 June 2017, 10.00 am

Council Chamber, Allerdale House
Membership:

Councillor Janet Farebrother (Chair) Councillor Alan Pitcher (Co-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Bill Finlay
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Hilary Harrington
Councillor Joe Holliday Councillor Billy Miskelly
Councillor Jim Osborn Councillor Bill Pegram
Councillor Celia Tibble Councillor Martin Wood

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Jess Hall on 01900  878705.

Agenda
1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 12)
To sign as correct record the minutes of the meetings of the Community 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 24 March and 7 April 2017 and the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 24 February and 21 April 
2017.

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.



4. Questions  
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

5. Public Participation  
To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on 
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 
working days before the meeting.

6. LGA Overview and Scrutiny Peer Review Feedback Report and Summary 
of the Stronger Scrutiny Workshop  (Pages 13 - 30)
To formally report the LGA’s recommendations following the peer review of the 
Overview and Scrutiny function on 29 and 30 March 2017 and the summary of 
the Stronger Scrutiny Workshop for Members held on 12 May 2017. 

7. Work Programme 2017-18  (Pages 31 - 60)
To consider and approve the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2017-2018.

8. Forward Plan  
To consider the Forward Plan of Executive Reports and Key Decisions.

9. Allerdale Tackling Poverty Strategy & Action Plan – Appointment of a Task 
and Finish Group  (Pages 61 - 66)
To agree the establishment and appointment of a Task and Finish Group to 
consider the draft Tackling Poverty Strategy and Action Plan. The Task and 
Finish Group will report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

10. Task and Finish Group Update - Partnership Scrutiny of Local Housing 
Provider  
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will receive a verbal update from the 
Task and Finish Group and consider and agree any further action.

Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:

Friday 11 August 2017, 10.00 am
Council Chamber, Allerdale House



At a meeting of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Council 
Chamber, Allerdale House on Friday 24 March 2017 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Christine Smith (Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Hilary Harrington Councillor Joe Holliday
Councillor Jim Lister Councillor Billy Miskelly
Councillor Alan Pitcher Councillor Celia Tibble

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J Farebrother, M Grainger and 
M Wood

Staff Present

D Devine, J Hall, N Hardy, R Irving, K Kerrigan and J Ward

Also Present

W H Jefferson (Executive Member)

415. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2017 were signed as a correct 
record.

416. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

417. Questions 

None received.

418. Public Participation 

None received.

419. Tourism Update 

The Head of Economic Growth, the AONB Manager and the Portfolio Holder for 
Tourism and Culture provided members with an update on tourism.

Tourism had been embedded into the Business Growth Plan which had been 
agreed by Executive on 11 November 2016.

Members noted the update and agreed that an update be provided at a future 
meeting on the delivery of the Business Growth Plan.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Agreed

That an update be provided at a future meeting on the delivery of the Business 
Growth Plan.

420. Local Plan Part 2 

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer submitted a report which sought to provide 
members with an update on the development of the Local Plan Part 2 Site 
Allocations.

The Head of Development Services and the Principal Planning Officer provided 
members with a presentation.

Members noted the update.

Agreed

That the update be noted.

421. Work Programme Development 2017-18 

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer submitted a report which sought members to 
note and agree an outline for identifying potential topics and issues and to 
agree the proposed Work Programme Prioritisation protocol set out in Appendix 
A and its application when developing the annual Overview and Scrutiny Work 
Programme.

Members noted the report and agreed the proposed outline and Work 
Programme Prioritisation protocol set out in Appendix A.

Agreed

That:

1. the proposed outline for identifying potential topics and issues be agreed

2. the Work Programme Prioritisation protocol set out in Appendix A and its 
application when developing the annual Overview and Scrutiny work 
programme be agreed

422. Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee Update Report 

The Senior Policy and Performance Officer submitted a report which sought the 
Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider whether any of the 
items contained within should be included on the Committee’s work plan.

Members noted the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. The items within the 
Forward Plan which fell into the remit of the Committee were highlighted in the 
report.

Members noted the work plan and agreed the following changes:

Page 2



 Housing Strategy be added as an item
 Housing and homelessness item be removed
 Future of healthcare provision West Cumbria (Success Regime) item be 

removed
 Local Plan Part 2 – Site Allocations item be removed
 Flooding and Coastal protection item be removed
 Car Park Machines item be removed
 Review of conservation plans and policies item be removed

Following a request from members, it was suggested that a briefing session be 
held to inform members of the role of the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership. 
The Scrutiny and Policy Officer agreed to arrange this. 

Agreed

That the report be noted.

423. Work Programme Item - Partnership Scrutiny (Local Housing Provider(s)) 

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer submitted a report which sought the committee 
to consider the addition of an item to its work programme with regard to 
undertaking a partnership scrutiny in relation to a local housing provider, Your 
Derwent and Solway. Councillor B Miskelly had requested this at Council on 18 
January 2017.

The issues identified were:

 How consultation takes place with tenants in relation to changes to the 
terms of their tenancy agreements, for example repairs policy and 
charges;

 The role of the ward councillor as community representative and the 
understanding of the ‘designated person’ as outlined in the Localism Act 
2011; and

 The Council as the Strategic Housing Authority and how its role is 
recognised by local housing providers

Members noted the background to the item and agreed that it be added to the 
committee’s work programme.

It was agreed that a Task and Finish Group be set up and that a full scoping 
exercise be carried out.

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer was asked to make appropriate arrangements 
on behalf of the committee.

Members also agreed that no other social housing providers be invited to 
participate in the exercise.

Page 3



Agreed

That:

1. the item be added to the Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
work programme

2. a full scoping exercise be carried out

3. the exercise be carried out by a Task and Finish Group

4. the Scrutiny and Policy Officer make appropriate arrangements on behalf 
of the Chair and the Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee

5. no other social housing providers be invited to participate in the exercise

The meeting closed at 12.35 pm

Page 4



At a meeting of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Council 
Chamber, Allerdale House on Friday 7 April 2017 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Billy Miskelly (Chair)
Councillor Joan Ellis Councillor Malcolm Grainger
Councillor Hilary Harrington Councillor Joe Holliday

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors T Annison, J Farebrother, 
J Lister, A Pitcher, C Smith, C Tibble and M Wood

Staff Present

D Devine, C Hadfield, J Hall, I Hinde, H Sant and G Wilson

Also Present

Councillors B Finlay, P Kendall and J Osborn

432. Election of Chairman 

Councillor B Miskelly was elected Chairman for the ensuing meeting.

433. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

434. Questions 

None received.

435. Public Participation 

None received.

436. Scrutiny of the Allerdale Health and Wellbeing Forum 

The Health Improvement Manager provided members with a presentation on 
the Improving Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2015-19.

The strategy set out 7 principle aims of the council to drive forward its health 
and wellbeing agenda:

1. To ensure residents have access to high quality health care
2. To create healthier communities by reducing health inequalities
3. To improve health and wellbeing through access to leisure and cultural 

activities
4. To improve health and wellbeing by maintaining safe and clean open 

spaces, improving the built environment and heritage
5. To ensure access to suitable and safe homes

Page 5



6. To encourage local businesses to take action that improves the health 
and wellbeing of their staff and customers

7. To be an exemplar employer for improving health and wellbeing amongst 
its employees

Members noted the report.

Members requested that an item be added to the committee’s work programme 
in relation to the Tackling Poverty Strategy.

It was agreed that scrutiny of the Allerdale Health and Wellbeing Forum would 
be built into the Tackling Poverty Strategy item on the work programme.

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer was asked to contact Portfolio Holders and 
Heads of Service to ask how their services could integrate with the strategy.

Agreed

That an item be added to the committee’s work programme in relation to the 
Tackling Poverty Strategy and that scrutiny of the Allerdale Health and 
Wellbeing Forum be built into this item.

The meeting closed at 11.50 am

Page 6



At a meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Council 
Chamber, Allerdale House on Friday 24 February 2017 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Peter Kendall (Chair) Councillor Jim Osborn (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Mary Bainbridge Councillor Bill Finlay
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Jim Lister
Councillor Billy Miskelly Councillor Bill Pegram
Councillor David Wilson

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Cook, J Cowell and 
L Williamson

Staff Present

D Devine, J Hall, E Ridings and P Wood

Also Present

P Tibble (Executive Member)

376. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 January 2017 were signed as a correct 
record.

377. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

378. Questions 

None received.

379. Public Participation 

None received.

380. Executive Minutes 

Members noted the Executive minutes of 11 January 2017.

Agreed

That the Executive minutes of 11 January 2017 be noted.

381. Programme Office Update 

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer submitted a report which sought to update 
members on the work of the Programme Office since June 2016.

Page 7



The Commissioning Manager provided members with a presentation on the 
work of the Programme Office.

Members noted the projects which had been completed and those which were 
being worked on.

Agreed

That:

1. the update be noted

2. another half yearly update be scheduled as part of the 2017/18 work 
programme

382. Work Programme Development 2017/18 

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer submitted a report which sought members to 
note and agree an outline for identifying potential topics and issues and to 
agree the proposed Work Programme Prioritisation protocol set out in Appendix 
1 and its application when developing the annual Overview and Scrutiny Work 
Programme.

Members noted the report and agreed the proposed outline and Work 
Programme Prioritisation protocol set out in Appendix 1.

Agreed

That:

1. the proposed outline for identifying potential topics and issues be agreed

2. the Work Programme Prioritisation protocol set out in Appendix 1 and its 
application when developing the annual Overview and Scrutiny work 
programme be agreed

383. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Update Report 

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer submitted a report to allow members to consider 
whether any of the items contained within were to be included on the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s work plan.

Members noted the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. The items within the 
Forward Plan which fell into the remit of the Committee were highlighted in the 
report.

Members noted the Compliments and Complaints Summary Report. 

Members noted the work plan.

Page 8



Agreed

That the report be noted.

The meeting closed at 11.45 am

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



At a meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Lonsdale 
Room, Allerdale House on Friday 21 April 2017 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Peter Kendall (Chair) Councillor Jim Osborn (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Mary Bainbridge Councillor Joseph Cowell
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Jim Lister
Councillor Billy Miskelly Councillor Bill Pegram

Apologies for absence were received from B Finlay, L Williamson and D Wilson

Staff Present

D Devine, J Hall, C Holmes, K Magnay and L Wolfe

Also Present

M Heaslip (Executive Member)

447. Declaration of Interests 

None received.

448. Questions 

None received.

449. Public Participation 

None received.

450. Selection of Business Delivery Model for Waste and Recycling, Street 
Cleansing and Grounds Maintenance Services 

The Head of Community Services submitted a report which sought to provide 
members with the results of the service delivery model option appraisal exercise 
and to note the procurement of performance based services around the 
selection a business delivery for waste and recycling, street cleansing and 
grounds maintenance services.

The Interim Waste and Recycling Officer provided members with a presentation 
setting out the key criteria for the most appropriate service delivery model, 
being implementation and supply chain, flexibility and synergy, control and 
responsiveness, risk partition, commercial opportunity and affordability target 
savings of £1m from 2019/20 on £5.986m.

The presentation also set out tasks undertaken to assist in the decision making 
process.

Members noted the report. 

Page 11



Agreed

That the report be noted.

451. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Update Report 

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer submitted a report to allow members of the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider if any of the items 
contained within should be included on the Committee’s Work Plan.

Members noted the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. The items within the 
Forward Plan which fell into the remit of the Committee were highlighted in the 
report.

Councillor M Grainger requested further information on the purchase of land at 
Lillyhall, Workington. The Scrutiny and Policy Officer agreed to provide the 
information to members.

Members were concerned with the lack of feedback from the Councils 
Representatives on Outside Bodies. The Scrutiny and Policy Officer agreed to 
raise this with the Head of Governance.

Councillor J Cowell requested an update on the IT strategy review. The Scrutiny 
and Policy Officer agreed to raise this with the Head of Customer and 
Commissioning, OD and Transformation.

Members noted the Compliments and Complaints Summary Report. Councillor 
M Bainbridge asked for further information on the complaints received in quarter 
3 and quarter 4 2016/2017. The Scrutiny and Policy Officer agreed to provide 
this information.

Members noted the work plan.

Agreed

That the report be noted.

The meeting closed at 11.37 am

Page 12



Allerdale Borough Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 23 June 2017

LGA Overview and Scrutiny Peer Review Feedback Report and Summary of 
the Stronger Scrutiny Workshop 

The Reason for the Decision To formally report to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee the LGA’s recommendations to the 
Council following the peer review of the Overview 
and Scrutiny function on 29 and 30 March 2017. 

The report also includes a summary of the 
Stronger Scrutiny Workshop for Members held on 
12 May 2017. 

Summary of options considered N/a 

Recommendations That Members note Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 
and provide any further comment/feedback.

Financial /  Resource Implications None 

Legal / Governance Implications There are no legal or governance implications 
directly associated with this report.  

Community Safety Implications None directly associated with this report. 

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

None directly associated with this report. 

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

None directly associated with this report. 

Wards Affected All 

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

The feedback report makes recommendations 
that future Work Programme items support 
Council Plan themes. 

Is this a Key Decision No

Lead Member Councillor J Farebrother (Current Chair) 

Lead Officer Jessica Hall 
Scrutiny and Policy Officer 
01900 878705
Jess.hall@allerdale.gov.uk 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Jess.hall@allerdale.gov.uk


Report Implications (Please delete where applicable).

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial N Employment (internal) N

Legal N Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers: Council – 17 May 2017 “Overview and Scrutiny Peer Review – 
Restructure of the Overview and Scrutiny Function and Review Recommendations”

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This report follows the Local Government Association (LGA) Peer Review of
the Overview and Scrutiny function at Allerdale Borough Council in March
2017. The LGA were on site at Allerdale House on 29 and 30 March 2017. All
Members were invited to participate in the review. The review was followed by 
a Stronger Scrutiny Workshop – facilitated by the LGA - for Members on 12 
May 2017. 

1.2 The LGA Peer Review Feedback Report is attached at Appendix 1 and the 
summary report of the Stronger Scrutiny Workshop is attached at Appendix 2. 

2.0 Full Council   

2.1 The LGA Peer Review Feedback report was considered at Full Council on 17 
May 2017. The feedback report made 7 key recommendations, which Council 
agreed would be implemented over the course of the next 12 months. The key 
recommendation that the structure of the function be reduced from two 
committees to one was agreed and adopted with immediate effect. 

2.2 On 12 May 2017, the LGA facilitated a Stronger Scrutiny Workshop for all 
Members of the Council which looked at ways in which the key 
recommendations could be implemented. 

3.0 Recommendations

3.1 That Members note Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 and provide any further 
comment/feedback. 

Jessica Hall 
Scrutiny and Policy Officer

Page 14



 

 

 

   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Peer Review 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Allerdale Borough Council  

 

29-30 March 2017 

 
Feedback Report  
 

 

 

Page 15



 

1 

 
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk 
Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd 

 

1. Executive Summary  
 
The Council Plan (2015-2019) sets out a vision to be ‘a great place to live, work and visit’.  
The Plan reflects the challenges facing the area and recognises that with funding 
pressures, fewer resources and demographic changes, it is important to look at new ways 
of working and think and act differently.  The council has agreed a series of 
transformational activities to make services and processes more efficient and generate 
income.  Within this context, it is judicious and timely that the council reviews the scrutiny 
function to ensure it remains effective, efficient and fit for purpose as local government 
continues to change.   
 
Those we spoke to were enthusiastic about the review; both officers and councillors across 
the council had a willingness to share their thoughts, ideas, stories and observations on 
what currently works well and what could be improved.  With a few exceptions, there is 
generally a good level of trust and respect between councillors and also between 
officers/councillors at all levels.   
 
“..there is a culture of helpfulness, problem solving, positivity and respect, both 
ways” (participant in a focus group). 
 
All remain committed to the principles of good governance including the valuable role that 
scrutiny should play.  The peer review team received very strong feedback on the 
dedication, experience, knowledge and enthusiasm of staff from across the council.  All of 
this provides a firm foundation upon which to develop and strengthen current 
arrangements.   
 
There were some good, but limited, examples of recent scrutiny activity which had a 
positive impact on an issue of significant public interest and/or council priority e.g. youth 
unemployment scrutiny review.  Work plans for both committees have been too broad and 
need to link better to council priorities, key decisions or issues of public interest/concern.  
Pre-decision scrutiny is limited and there is very little engagement with wider communities 
and partners in relation to the work of the scrutiny committees.  Some councillors and 
officers were disheartened by this and feel that some meetings are too lengthy and lack 
purpose about expected outcomes.   
 
A prioritisation tool kit has recently been introduced and a workshop is planned in the next 
few weeks to help develop a more focussed work plan.  This is a good progress; all 
participants should continue to work together to develop a workplan which is focused, 
linked to council priorities, key decisions and on topics which are likely to add value.  
Systems should be put in place to monitor outcomes linked to the work programme and the 
forward plan of key decisions should form a standard agenda item for each meeting.  
 
A positive next step would be to develop a single overview and scrutiny committee 
supported by task and finish groups aligned to council priorities.  This could help build 
capacity for more detailed pieces of work linked to council priorities outside of formal 
committee meetings. It will also provide the space to re-invigorate community engagement 
and communication in relation to the work of scrutiny.  This could also be an opportunity to 
inject new ideas and energy to current arrangements.  The ‘two committee’ structure has 

Page 16

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk 

 

2 

the potential to be overly bureaucratic with a degree of separation between them which 
has widened over time.    
 

There needs to be a renewed focus on the leadership of scrutiny across the council.  The 
culture of the council needs to recognise the important role that scrutiny plays in 
constructive challenge and decision making.  Membership of the committee and chairing 
arrangements are key.  Chairing skills are paramount in keeping a committee focused; the 
council should continue to support the development of these skills.   
 
The council should consider the role of all councillors and co-optees as part of the new 
structure e.g. e.g. chairing of the task and finish groups.  The majority of councillors we 
spoke to said that councillors from differing party backgrounds work well together on 
overview and scrutiny with the aim of improving local outcomes.  This can be further 
harnessed as some opposition members currently feel their role is devalued.   
 
An agreement for heads of service to attend scrutiny meetings on a rotational basis was 
welcomed by those we spoke to.  There is potential to strengthen this arrangement by 
developing a more consistent approach on who attends and leads from the senior 
management team.  This sends an important message about the profile of scrutiny for both 
councillors, officers and other stakeholders.  Heads of service could also act as champions 
for the task and finish groups.   
 
There is also further potential to strengthen the interaction between the Executive and 
scrutiny.  Involvement of individual Executive members with scrutiny is varied.  We 
recognise that the forward plan is included within the papers for every meeting, but 
including the forward plan as a stand-alone agenda item for all scrutiny meetings should 
help guide invitations to the Executive.   
 
We found that both councillors and officers would welcome further training on the role of 
scrutiny and their respective roles.  This should be a rolling programme including generic 
principles and processes of scrutiny, chairing skills and questioning skills for councillors.  
Reports for noting and information have a value, but the council could consider a separate 
member briefing mechanism to impart this kind of information where appropriate.  This 
would allow the committee to focus on the areas where it can genuinely influence and add 
value.   
 
A number of operational changes could also be made to embed the role of scrutiny across 
the council.  Decision making and report templates, the forward plan template and project 
planning processes/procedures could be reviewed to incorporate prompts for officers and 
councillors in relation to the scrutiny function.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk 

 

3 

2. Key recommendations  
 
There are a range of suggestions and observations within the main section of the report 
that will inform some ‘quick wins’ and practical actions, in addition to the conversations 
onsite, many of which provided ideas and examples of practice from other organisations.  
The following are the peer team’s key recommendations to the council. 
 

1. Continue to develop a more focused workplan more closely aligned to council 
priorities, key decisions and topics of public interest/importance.  This will help 
prioritise issues where scrutiny can ‘add value’ including more pre-decision scrutiny. 
 

2. Develop a single committee structure supported by task and finish groups 
aligned to council priorities.  This will help build capacity for more detailed pieces 
of work linked to council priorities outside of formal committee meetings.  The task 
and finish groups should provide opportunities for any scrutiny member to chair and 
any member to join (regardless of political party). 

 
3. Re-invigorate community engagement and communication in relation to the 

work of scrutiny.  Task and finish groups focused upon key priorities/topics should 
provide more space to do this, including opportunities to appoint co-optees to the 
task and finish groups.     

 
4. Develop a renewed focus on the leadership of scrutiny across the council.  

This should include the role of all members including co-optees.  It will send an 
important message to all stakeholders about the role and profile of overview and 
scrutiny. 
 

5. Develop stronger links between the Executive and overview and scrutiny – 
strengthening communication and ways of working will allow scrutiny to better 
inform and shape policy and decisions. 
 

6. Develop a rolling programme of overview and scrutiny training for both 
councillors and officers.  The council should support the development of skills 
important for good scrutiny including a mandatory intensive training programme for 
scrutiny members.   
 

7. Review decision making templates, forward plan template and project 
planning processes to incorporate prompts in relation to the scrutiny function 
– this should encourage all in the council to consider the role scrutiny could play in 
both pre-decision and post decision scrutiny.   

 

 
3. Summary of the Peer Review approach  

 
The peer team  
 
Peer reviews are delivered by experienced elected member and officer peers.  The 
make-up of the peer team reflected your requirements and the focus of the peer 
review.   Peers were selected on the basis of their relevant experience and expertise 

Page 18

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk 

 

4 

and agreed with you.  The peers who delivered the scrutiny peer review at Allerdale 
were:   
 

 Tracy Morrison, Director of Resources, Fylde Borough Council (Lead Peer) 

 Councillor Amy Cross, Cabinet Member for Adult Services and Health, Blackpool 
Council 

 Cindy Lowthian, Local Government Association (North-West) – Review Manager 
 

Scope and focus 
 
The overall aim of the peer review is to explore how effective current scrutiny 
arrangements are in meeting council priorities and how this can be improved.  You 
asked us to focus on the following key questions:  
 

1. How well is scrutiny delivering against council priorities?   
 

2. How well is scrutiny engaging communities?   
 

3. How well focused is scrutiny?   
 

4. Is the governance of the scrutiny function fit for purpose?   
 

5. How effective is scrutiny training and development?   
 

6. How can working processes and protocols be improved.   
 
The peer review process 
 

It is important to stress that this was not an inspection.  Peer reviews are improvement 
focussed and tailored to meet individual councils’ needs.  They are designed to 
complement and add value to a council’s own performance and improvement.  The 
process is not designed to provide an in-depth or technical assessment of plans and 
proposals.  The peer team used their experience and knowledge of local government to 
reflect on the information presented to them by people they met, things they saw and 
material that they read.  
 
The peer team prepared for the scrutiny peer review by reviewing a range of documents 
and information in order to ensure they were familiar with the Council and the scrutiny 
arrangements.  The team then spent 2 days onsite at Allerdale House, during which 
they: 
 

 Spoke to more than 40 people including a range of council staff and councillors. 
 

 Gathered information and views from meetings and additional research and 
reading.  This includes a bespoke survey of councillors and officers undertaken 
by the council; 19 responses were received.  
 

 Collectively spent more than 60 hours to determine their findings – the equivalent 
of one person spending over 1.5 weeks in Allerdale.   

Page 19

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk 

 

5 

 
This report provides a summary of the peer team’s findings.  It builds on the feedback 
presentation provided by the peer team at the end of their on-site visit on 30 March 
2017.  In presenting feedback to you, they have done so as fellow local government 
officers and members, not professional consultants or inspectors.  By its nature, the 
peer challenge is a snapshot in time.  We appreciate that some of the feedback may be 
about things you are already addressing and progressing. 

Page 20

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk 

 

6 

 

4. Feedback  
 
4.1 How well is scrutiny delivering against council priorities? 

 
4.2 Most of those we spoke to demonstrated a good understanding of the role of 

overview and scrutiny including its role in supporting delivery of council priorities.  
The survey undertaken by the council had nineteen responses in total and of 
those, just over half felt overview and scrutiny work links well to council priorities.  
However, most also felt that improvements could be made so that scrutiny was 
able to strengthen its role as a critical friend and add more value to the work of the 
council.  Those we spoke to generally felt that there was a gap between how 
scrutiny should operate and current practice.  The potential of O&S was widely 
recognised, but few felt this potential was being fully realised or harnessed.   

     
4.2 There were limited examples of recent scrutiny activity which had a positive impact 

and linked to council priorities.  The most cited example was the work undertaken 
by the Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee to examine youth 
unemployment in Allerdale.  A sub-committee had been established and met on a 
number of occasions over a year and 3 months.  The area of focus had been 
scoped and agreed.  A detailed report including recommendations had been 
shared with the Executive in January 2017.  

 
4.3 The work of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee was also cited as an 

example; a working group had been established to provide scrutiny of the grounds 
maintenance procurement process and recommendations had been shared with 
the Executive in September 2015.   

 
4.4 Most felt that the task and finish groups had worked well – giving members more 

time and space to drill down into issues of policy and performance.  The council 
should explore opportunities to build this approach as it looks at the future 
governance of the scrutiny function (discussed later). 

 
4.5 The recent introduction of a work programme prioritisation toolkit was welcomed 

by councillors and officers who told us work plans had been too broad and 
unwieldly - “it grows and grows” (focus group member).  The work programme 
toolkit should be used to help prioritise the issues where the scrutiny function can 
add most value and which support council priorities.  A dedicated meeting with 
members of the two committees is to be held in April to discuss the work 
programme; this is good progress and this approach should continue in the longer 
term.  Thought should now be given to develop a system to monitor outcomes 
linked to the work programme and track progress.  If recommendations and 
outcomes are not progressed, this will demotivate contributors.   

 
4.6 Those we spoke to indicated that pre-decision scrutiny is limited.  Good overview 

and scrutiny entails achieving a balance of scrutinising past decision making as 
well as exploring areas of policy development at an early stage.  O&S should be 
seen as a tool to help the executive and senior officers explore the potential impact 
and implications of potential decisions before they are made by the Executive.   

Page 21

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk 

 

7 

Consideration should be given to having the forward plan of key decisions listed as 
a standard agenda item for all scrutiny meetings to encourage pre-decision 
scrutiny.   Embedding scrutiny into other internal systems and processes of the 
council should also be considered as a means to encourage more pre-decision 
scrutiny of key policy areas (explored later in the report).   

 
4.7 How well is scrutiny engaging communities? 

 
4.8 A key principle for effective scrutiny, established through the Centre for Public 

Scrutiny, is to enable the voice and concerns of the public and communities.  All 
we spoke to spoke highly of the local knowledge of councillors in respect to their 
local communities and neighourhoods.  A number of these councillors are twin 
hatted and are able to bring the perspective of parish and town councils into 
scrutiny discussions.  Councillors are able to express constituent views to inform 
the work of scrutiny and there were numerous examples of this cited by those 
whom we met.   

 
4.9 There are limited examples of direct public engagement in the work of the scrutiny 

committees.  Meetings are open to the public and there is information on the 
council website outlining when and where the meetings are held.  The website also 
includes an option for members of the public or other stakeholders to suggest a 
topic for scrutiny via an online form.  Most of those we spoke to suggested that it is 
generally rare for members of the public to attend. The council’s short survey also 
re-inforced this view with most respondents indicating that this is an area that 
could be strengthened.  The unemployment scrutiny review was cited as an 
example of scrutiny’s wider engagement.  Presentations were received from a 
range of invited speakers and a call for evidence from partner organisations was 
made.  Other than this, the enquiry was completed by desk research, data analysis 
and examination of reports/publications.   

 
4.10 There are opportunities to strengthen the way scrutiny communicates and 

engages with the diverse communities of Allerdale.  We recognise that getting 
community engagement right is always a challenge for most scrutiny committees.  
The council should first prioritise reviewing the governance of the scrutiny function 
– with a focus on targeted pieces of work led through task and finish groups and 
linked to council priorities.  The task groups should then consider meaningful ways 
to gain the views of stakeholders, appoint co-optees, engage partners and collate 
evidence and research data to inform their work.  There are then opportunities to 
build on this going forward – communicating successes to engender wider interest 
and buy in from a range of communities and partners.   

 
4.11 How well focused is scrutiny? 

 
4.12 Most people we spoke to recognised that some meetings can be quite lengthy with 

a lack of focus on the intended outcomes.  Presentations were useful and 
informative, but often lengthy.  Members sometimes feel there is a lack of clarity 
on what the specific ask is of them following presentations by officers.  There is 
currently too much focus on items for information sharing, when more focus should 

Page 22

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk 

 

8 

be placed on reviewing and influencing policy at an early stage of development or 
scrutinising decision making.   

 
4.13 In addition to strengthening the way the work programme is developed and 

prioritised, already outlined, consideration should be given to issuing clearer 
guidance to officers about expectations.  This could be done during the pre-
meeting briefings with the chair/committee members.  It could also be made 
clearer to officers at the point at which their attendance at the committee is 
confirmed, perhaps through a short guidance document on what to expect when 
attending an O&S meeting.  This should include a reason for attendance at 
scrutiny e.g. policy influencing/shaping, pre-decision scrutiny, post decision 
scrutiny or topic of significant public interest. 

 
4.14 Is the governance of the scrutiny function fit for purpose? 

 
4.15 The current ‘2 committee’ structure has been in place since 2013 and following the 

departure of the Corporate Director of Operations, no longer aligns to the council’s 
own internal structures.   Draft proposals from the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England propose a reduction in the number of councillors (7 less 
than currently) and wards (9 less than currently).  The final proposals will be 
known in June 2017.  Some felt that councillor capacity to deliver two overview 
and scrutiny committees could be more of a challenge.   

 
4.16 Attendance figures for both overview and scrutiny committees average between 60 

and 66% also posing questions about the current structure.  A 2 committee 
structure has the potential to be overly bureaucratic, with a tendency for a degree 
of separation between the two committees which has widened over time.     

 
4.17 Changing the current structure could also be an opportunity to inject new ideas 

and energy into scrutiny.  The council should consider developing a single 
committee with a more focused work plan.  A single committee structure could 
help build capacity amongst officers, executive members and councillors to attend 
and support.    

 
4.18 This committee could be supported by task and finish groups linked to council 

priorities.  The task groups should have more time and space to drill down into 
areas linked to council priorities, facilitate good cross party working and engage 
communities on areas of wider public interest.  Consideration could be given to 
including a standing ‘performance and budget’ working group as part of this 
approach which can help support overall performance scrutiny and the budget 
planning cycle - feeding into the wider committee.     

 
4.19 Membership of the task and finish groups could involve councillors from across the 

authority, not necessarily limited to those on scrutiny.  This will ensure the council 
is harnessing the skills of all members to inform good scrutiny and help embed 
O&S across the council.    Membership could also include co-optees from partner 
organisations, helping to bring in wider perspectives and expertise.   

 

Page 23

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk 

 

9 

4.20 There needs to be a renewed focus on the leadership of scrutiny across the 
council.   

 
“…there is something about making scrutiny not the last thing people are 
involved in, but the first thing people want to get involved in” (participant from 
a focus group). 

 
4.21 The culture of the council needs to recognise the important role that scrutiny plays 

in constructive challenge and decision making.  It is important that senior 
councillors and senior officers champion scrutiny in their work. 

 
4.22 Membership of the committee and chairing arrangements are key to this.  Who is 

appointed to the chair and from which political party is a matter for the council – 
with CfPS research indicating that there are a variety of ways in which councils 
can decide their chairs.  Overall, the peer team felt that the individual chairing skills 
(of the person who is appointed) is a key factor in the success of scrutiny.  There 
are also opportunities to consider the role of all members in the chairing of the task 
and finish groups (see below).   Overall, the council should support the 
development of chairing skills which can help keep a committee focused in holding 
the Executive to account.   

 
4.23 The council should give further consideration to the role of members across all 

political parties as part of any new structure.  The majority of councillors we spoke 
to said that councillors from different party backgrounds work well together on 
O&S.  This can be further harnessed as some members currently feel their role is 
de-valued.   There is an opportunity for the task and finish groups to be chaired by 
any scrutiny member and for any member from the council to join if they have 
experience or knowledge that can add value. 

 
4.24 Agreement for heads of service to attend scrutiny meetings on a rotational basis 

was welcomed by those we spoke to and backed up by the short survey 
responses.  This sends an important message to all stakeholders about the role 
and profile of scrutiny in the council.  However, the rotational nature of this 
arrangement could diffuse senior management responsibilities in relation to 
scrutiny.  There is potential to strengthen this arrangement by developing a more 
consistent approach on who attends from the senior management team.  Heads of 
service could also support councillors by acting as champions for the task and 
finish groups.     

 
4.25 There is also further potential to strengthen the interaction between the executive 

and the scrutiny committee.  Involvement of individual executive members with 
scrutiny is varied.  We recognise that the forward plan is included within the papers 
for every meeting but not listed as a separate item on the agenda. Including the 
forward plan as a stand-alone agenda item for all scrutiny meetings should help 
guide invitations to the Executive.  Executive members should be invited to give 
evidence at the request of the committee.   

 
4.26 Informal methods of communication between the Executive and O&S should also 

be encouraged as a means to engender mutual trust and respect for each other, 

Page 24

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk 

 

10 

allowing O&S to inform and shape policy decisions.  We acknowledge that there 
have been attempts to develop this relationship outside of formal committee 
meetings in the past.  More recently, this involved the Scrutiny Chairs and the 
Executive Member for Corporate Resources meeting (facilitated by the Corporate 
Director and Senior Policy/Performance Officer).  This needs to be looked at again 
as part of the wider recommendations in this report.     

 
4.27 How effective is scrutiny training and development? 

 
4.28 We understand that a training programme is to be developed for councillors over 

the forthcoming weeks which will include a refresher introduction to scrutiny, chairs 
training and financial/budget scrutiny.  The councillors and officers we spoke to 
would both welcome further training on the role of scrutiny and their respective 
roles.  This was also reflected in the responses from the short council survey 
relating to scrutiny.  Developing a continued, mandatory and rolling programme of 
training for both councillors and officers will help them to maintain their focus on 
O&S.  It also sends out a message about the importance of scrutiny at the council.  
Training should include questioning skills for councillors.   

 
4.29 Some of those who completed the recent short council survey on scrutiny stressed 

the importance of scrutiny acting as independent of the Executive.  Members 
should, as far as possible, be objective about policies of their own party.  Scrutiny 
must be seen to be ‘above party politics’ as outlined in NLGN research ‘Realising 
the Potential of Scrutiny’.  Good scrutiny does require “a more consensual 
approach to local politics”; training should be used to re-inforce these messages. 

 
4.30 Consideration should also be given to visiting other councils to observe scrutiny 

meetings.  Most members we spoke to were open to this suggestion.   
 

4.31 How can working processes and protocols be improved? 
 

4.32 A number of further operational changes could also be made to embed the role of 
scrutiny across the council.  Current decision making templates, including report 
templates for both the Executive and Council, don’t include a tick box to show if 
the item has been offered or considered by scrutiny.  Many other councils now do 
this and it can often act as a prompt for those involved in producing reports to 
consider the role that scrutiny should play.  It can also act as a challenge for those 
considering reports to explore the role of scrutiny.  Decision making and report 
templates, including the forward plan template, should be reviewed to include 
prompts relating to the scrutiny function.   

 
4.33 We were told of an example of a recent project where an officer had produced a 

project plan to incorporate consideration by scrutiny early in the project 
development phase.  This is good practice as it encourages early, pre-decision 
scrutiny and should inform a more inclusive project.  Project plan templates and 
initiation documents should be reviewed to include options around possible 
scrutiny involvement.   

 

Page 25

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk 

 

11 

4.34 Decision making and report templates, the forward plan template and project 
planning processes/procedures should be reviewed to incorporate prompts for 
officers and councillors in relation to the scrutiny function.   

 

 

5. Next steps  

 
Immediate next steps  
 
We appreciate the senior managerial and political leadership will want to reflect on 
these findings and suggestions in order to determine how the organisation wishes to 
take things forward.  
 
As part of the peer review process, there is an offer of further activity to support this. 
The LGA is well placed to provide additional support, advice and guidance on a number 
of the areas for development and improvement and we would be happy to discuss this. 
Neil Shaw, Principal Adviser is the main contact between your authority and the Local 
Government Association (LGA). His contact details are:  Neil.Shaw@local.gov.uk 
 
In the meantime we are keen to continue the relationship we have formed with the 
Council throughout the peer challenge.  We will endeavour to provide signposting to 
examples of practice and further information and guidance about the issues we have 
raised in this report to help inform ongoing consideration.  
 
Follow up visit  
 
The LGA peer review process includes a follow up visit. The purpose of the visit is to 
help the council assess the impact of the peer challenge and demonstrate the progress 
it has made against the areas of improvement and development identified by the peer 
team. It is a lighter-touch version of the original visit and does not necessarily involve all 
members of the original peer team. The timing of the visit is determined by the Council.  
Our expectation is that it will occur within the next 2 years.  
 
Next Corporate Peer Challenge 
 
We recognise that this review has focussed on the scrutiny function.  Your last full 
Corporate Peer Challenge was in July 2012.  The current LGA sector-led improvement 
support offer includes an offer for councils to have a full Corporate Peer Challenge or 
Finance Peer Review every 4 to 5 years.  This means that you could now consider the 
timing of a future Corporate Peer Review.   
 

Page 26

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


1

25/05/17

Jess Hall
Scrutiny and Policy Officer
Allerdale Borough Council
Allerdale House
Workington
CA14 3YJ

Dear Jess

Re: Stronger Scrutiny Workshop – 12 May 2017

Following the recent peer review of the council’s scrutiny function in March 2017, the 
council recently invited the LGA to lead a workshop with members on 12 May 2017.   
The aim of the session was to outline the recommendations arising from the review 
and provide a space for members to share their own thoughts and practical ideas to 
support implementation.  The session was jointly led by Cindy Lowthian from the Local 
Government Association and Councillor Amy Cross, Cabinet member for Adult 
Services and Health, Blackpool Council and the Lead Member Peer for the Scrutiny 
Peer Review.  This letter aims to capture the key themes which emerged from the 
workshop.

The workshop

The workshop considered the recommendations arising from the scrutiny review.  
Participants acknowledged that Full Council will be asked to support these 
recommendations on 17 May 2017.  A table discussion allowed members to reflect 
upon the recommendations and share their thoughts to support implementation.

A key theme emerging from the discussion concerned culture change and how to 
engender and support this.  Participants acknowledged their own role in this.  They 
explored some of the challenges involved and discussed the important role that 
ongoing training for both officers and members can play.  A practical suggestion made 
was to include ‘scrutiny’ on departmental team agendas to support culture change.  
Providing opportunities for wider members to get involved in the work of the task and 
finish groups was also acknowledged as important.  Some participants welcomed the 
opportunity to involve co-optees in the work of the task and finish groups as this could 
provide an opportunity ‘to bring fresh air into the scrutiny process’.  

Another theme emerging from discussions concerned capacity issues, particularly in 
ensuring that both officers and members are able to support the work of the task and 
finish groups.  Participants felt it was important for the task and finish groups to agree 
clear terms of reference for their respective work areas, including the role that officers 

Page 27



2

play in supporting them.  Some of the participants commented on the valuable role of 
the scrutiny officer function and ensuring this post has capacity to oversee the changes 
to scrutiny going forward.  

Participants discussed the proposal to change the governance structure for O&S and 
move from a two committee structure to a single committee - supported by task and 
finish groups.  Some commented on the opportunities this provides in allowing detailed 
examination of priority issues ‘more so than in the past’.  Others explored opportunities 
for this new single committee structure (supported by task and finish groups) ‘to unify 
the work of O&S’.  The need to continue to rationalise areas of the work plan was also 
acknowledged.  Others explored the rationale for a single committee structure and 
how to ensure members have the capacity to support the task and finish groups going 
forward.  Opportunities to involve wider members in different task and finish groups 
was acknowledged as important in building this capacity.  

The workshop discussion finished with members exploring community engagement 
for O&S under the new arrangements.  Participants commented on the need to ensure 
the new structure is ‘community friendly’ and that all are clear on what is meant by 
community engagement.  Ideas included tapping into existing engagement 
mechanisms and providing opportunities to involve people who do not usually engage.  
Participants felt that an important element of this should be work to help educate 
stakeholders on what scrutiny actually is including training for lay members.  Members 
also welcomed any opportunities to learn from others and look at how other councils 
approach this.  

Further details from the workshop flip charts are included in Appendix A.

Next steps

Following the Full Council meeting on 17th May, copies of the workshop summary 
feedback could be provided to O&S members tasked with implementing the scrutiny 
review recommendations.

Further on-going support is available through the Local Government Association’s 
Principal Advisor, Neil Shaw (email: neil.shaw@local.gov.uk) and Cindy Lowthian, 
Advisor (email: cindy.lowthian@local.gov.uk).  Neil will continue to liaise with the 
authority in the future to explore specific issues the council may wish to be supported 
on.

Report contact

Cindy Lowthian
Adviser
Local Government Association
Email: cindy.lowthian@local.gov.uk

Page 28

mailto:neil.shaw@local.gov.uk
mailto:cindy.lowthian@local.gov.uk


3

Appendix A – Workshop Flip-Charts

Culture Change

 How can provide opportunities for other members to get involved in T&F 
groups.

 Important for elected members to have ‘ownership of the corporate plan’ – 
should help with this.

 Lay people/co-optees – interested in how this can be used to provide ‘fresh air’ 
into the process.

 Members need to see/make work.
 See O&S as a positive tool – not negative.
 Work with officers to ensure valuable role of scrutiny.
 Cultural Panel – learning from this and use of lay substitutes.
 Could put scrutiny on departmental agendas for staff.
 Tricky – “at what point should they take an issue to scrutiny – training for officers 

is key”.
 How engender change 

o T&F groups are key
o Service focus – important
o Make community friendly

 Example of asset transfer work – looking at how others approached this was 
helpful.  Opportunities to learn from others and visit other districts re O&S.

Capacity

 Important to agree clear role/capacity for officers in supporting T&F group.
 Ensure scrutiny officer support functions adequately resourced.
 How can build capacity to support community engagement.
 Forward Plan is critical – work on this is key.
 Important to rationalise areas of focus in work plan “can’t do everything”.
 Need to manage the work of the T&F groups
 Like idea of template of projects to help build focus going forward

Governance

 Task and finish groups - key in examining local issues ‘more than we have done 
in the past’.

 Attendance records – cutting down to one committee can help – learning from 
planning.

 Mirrors way executive system operates e.g. Exec reports to Council, T&F 
groups report into O&S single committee.

 Important to rationalise areas of focus in work plan “can’t do everything”.
 Importance of task and finish groups supporting key pieces of work, they should 

have time to do this.
 Opportunity for one committee structure to unify O&S work.

Page 29



4

Community Engagement

 Be clear on what you mean by community engagement.
 Different models to involve.
 Develop approaches – how to involve those who don’t usually engage.
 Give serious consideration on how we can educate public on what scrutiny 

actually is.
 Training for lay members.
 Residents survey (discussion on numbers who said they want to be involved 

and especially on an issue that is important to them).
 Capacity – do we have this to support community engagement
 Can look at booklets re O&S to explain 

Page 30



Allerdale Borough Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 23 June 2017

Work Programme 2017 - 2018

The Reason for the Decision The report requests the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to agree its Work Programme for 
2017-18.  

The Council’s Constitution identifies that the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a 
responsibility to set an annual Work Programme 
at the beginning of each municipal year. 

Summary of options considered To set an annual Work Programme to coincide 
with the outcomes of the LGA Peer Review of 
Overview and Scrutiny, a revised Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee structure and the 
establishment of a single Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  This is the recommended option. 

To wait until the outcome of the LGA Peer Review 
of Overview and Scrutiny before the Work 
Programme was developed. However it was 
considered this was not an option and would lead 
to delay. 

To roll the Work Programme over from 2016-17. 
However the Constitution does not support this. It 
is also considered that new priorities for the 
function are emerging and the Work Programme 
requires revision. This was therefore not at 
option. 

Recommendations 1.That the development of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Work Programme is noted

2. That it is noted that the Work Programme 
Prioritisation Protocol has been applied 
throughout the Work Programme’s development;

3.That feedback from the LGA Peer Review of 
Overview and Scrutiny in relation to the Work 
Programme is noted;

4.That standard items at section 4 of the report 
are noted and agreed;

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



5.That the Committee considers the following 
options in relation to performance scrutiny and 
budget scrutiny:

a) That these items are considered quarterly 
in the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or

b) That a small separate working group is 
established by the Committee which meets 
quarterly to consider performance and 
budget scrutiny and reports to the main 
committee;

6.That provision is made on the Work Programme 
for pre-scrutiny and/or urgent items

7.That the long list of suggested Work 
Programme topics at Appendix 1 is noted;

8.That the final draft Work Programme at 
Appendix 2 is considered and agreed; 

9.That the Work Programme is reviewed and 
updated at each meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

Financial /  Resource Implications It is considered that with focus and prioritisation, 
the Work Programme can be delivered within 
current resources. However there is likely to be 
demand on Officer and Member resources, 
especially for Task and Finish Group scrutiny 
exercises. Members need to be aware that other 
resources may be identified at scoping stage, 
including partner resources and that there will 
need to be sensitivity to that.

Legal / Governance Implications The statutory functions of Overview and Scrutiny 
are covered by the Work Programme. 

Community Safety Implications No direct implications. However the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee has a statutory duty to 
scrutinise the Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership/ Community Safety Partnership at 
least annually. All other work will be scoped to 
identify any Community Safety implications. 

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

No direct implications. All work will be scoped to 
identify any Health and Safety and Risk 
Management implications. 

Page 32



Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

No direct implications. All work will be scoped to 
identify any Equality Duty and Equality Impact 
Assessment implications. 

Wards Affected All wards. 

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

The Council Plan 2015-19 has been a key 
consideration throughout the development of the 
Work Programme 2017-18. Prioritisation of Work 
Programme items and Task and Finish Groups 
are aligned to Council Plan themes and priorities. 

Is this a Key Decision No. 

Lead Scrutiny Member Councillor Janet Farebrother (Current Chair) 

Lead Officer Jessica Hall 
Scrutiny and Policy Officer 
01900 878705
Jess.Hall@allerdale.gov.uk 

Report Implications (Please delete where applicable).

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial N Employment (internal) N

Legal Y Partnership Y

Social Inclusion Y Asset Management N

Equality Duty Y Health and Safety N

Background papers: 

Report to Council (17 May 2017) – Overview and Scrutiny Peer Review – 
Restructure of the Overview and Scrutiny Function and Review Recommendations 
(incorporating the LGA Peer Review Feedback Report) 
Report to Community Scrutiny (24 March 2017) – Work Programme Development 
Report to Corporate Scrutiny (24 February 2017) – Work Programme Development 
Allerdale Borough Council Constitution 

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for developing 
and setting an annual Work Programme which addresses its statutory roles 
and issues that are a priority for the Council and Allerdale residents and 
communities. 

Page 33

mailto:Jess.Hall@allerdale.gov.uk


1.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme is key to the success of the 
Overview and Scrutiny function and the wider work of the Council. Overview 
and Scrutiny must provide constructive challenge to decision making, add 
value to the work of the Council and produce worthwhile and lasting outcomes 
for local people. 

1.3 The Work Programme has been developed by Overview and Scrutiny 
Members applying guidance from the Work Programme Prioritisation Protocol. 
This protocol was agreed by the previous Corporate and Community 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

1.4 Members are asked to note the development of the Work Programme, agree 
the proposed draft Work Programme and its regular review by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. 

2.0 Background

2.1 In February 2017 and March 2017, Corporate and Community Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees respectively agreed to develop a new Overview and 
Scrutiny Work Programme for 2017-18. They agreed to carry this out using a 
newly adopted work programme prioritisation protocol. 

2.2 Members noted and agreed a proposed outline for its development which 
would identify priority issues and allow for the inclusion of upcoming and 
urgent items during the year (for example pre-scrutiny).

2.3 It was also agreed that all key Overview and Scrutiny roles would be included 
in the Work Programme including mechanisms for the scrutiny of Executive 
decisions (pre and post scrutiny) and performance and budget scrutiny. In 
addition the Work Programme will take account of other statutory functions 
facilitated by Overview and Scrutiny including ‘Call In’, Councillor Call for 
Action (CCfA) and scrutiny of the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership 
(CDRP)/Community Safety Partnership (CSP). 

3.0 LGA Peer Review of Overview and Scrutiny

3.1 The development of the annual Work Programme coincided with the LGA’s 
Peer Review of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny function on 29 and 30 
March. The Peer Review team were asked to consider how well scrutiny is 
delivering against Council priorities and in its feedback report it recommended 
to the Council that it: 

“Continues to develop a more focused workplan more closely aligned to 
council priorities, key decisions and topics of public interest/importance.  This 
will help prioritise issues where scrutiny can ‘add value’ including more pre-
decision scrutiny”.

Page 34



3.2 It also made reference to the Work Programme Prioritisation Protocol as 
follows:

“The work programme toolkit should be used to help prioritise the 
issues where the scrutiny function can add most value and which 
support council priorities.  A dedicated meeting with members of the 
two committees is to be held in April to discuss the work programme; 
this is good progress and this approach should continue in the longer 
term.  Thought should now be given to develop a system to monitor 
outcomes linked to the work programme and track progress.  If 
recommendations and outcomes are not progressed, this will 
demotivate contributors”

3.3 It is recognised that there is a potential for a wide range of issues to be 
considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee yet there are finite 
resources. Therefore the Work Programme needs to be focused.  The 
protocol has been applied throughout the Work Programme’s development.   

4.0 Work Programme Standard Agenda Items 

4.1 To ensure that Overview and Scrutiny fulfils its main remit, it was agreed that 
the development of the Work Programme will include a number of standard 
items. These are as follows: 

 The Executive Forward Plan. This will identify when any pre scrutiny is 
needed. 

 Work Programme Review and Update (including consideration of new 
additions and removal)

 Task and Finish Group/Working Group updates (including setting terms of 
reference and considering their reports and recommendations).

 Outcomes/recommendations monitor (updates to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on recommendations made to Executive/any other 
body).

 Scrutiny of the West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership (at least 
annually).

4.2 It is recommended that these are standard agenda items for the main 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

5.0 Budget and Performance Scrutiny Working Group 

5.1 It is proposed that the following standard items are considered as part of a 
small working group established by the main Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee:

 Quarterly Performance Monitoring Reports (Council Plan delivery, Key 
Performance Indicators) 

 Financial Monitoring Reports (Financial/budget scrutiny)

Page 35



5.2 The establishment of such a working group has been supported by Overview 
and Scrutiny members in previous years and it was also suggested by the 
LGA Peer Review Team in its feedback report. It is recommended that unlike 
Task and Finish Groups, this is an ongoing group. It will report back to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

5.3 The Committee is asked to agree the establishment of the working group and 
identify a Chair and interested Members. 

6.0 Pre Decision Scrutiny 

6.1 Members are asked to note that provision should be made for in-year pre-
decision scrutiny and urgent items. 

7.0 Work Programme Pool and Shortlisting 

7.1 Following the agreement of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees to start 
developing the new Work Programme, the Overview and Scrutiny Chairs 
invited suggestions. 

7.2 A number of topics were proposed by Members and Officers. These were 
placed on a longlist, attached at Appendix 1. A workshop was held on Friday 
7 April to which all Overview and Scrutiny Members were invited. At the 
workshop, Members assessed each topic according to the Work Programme 
Prioritisation Protocol.

7.3 Members then shortlisted and consolidated review area topics for the Work 
Programme. These have been placed on the Work Programme and will be 
prioritised accordingly and kept under review throughout the year. 

7.4 A final draft Work Programme is attached at Appendix 2. Members are asked 
to consider and agree the final draft. It is proposed that the Work Programme 
is delivered in a range of forums including formal committee meetings, 
working groups and informal Task and Finish Groups. 

8.0 Adding additional items during the year 

8.1 The Work Programme should be reviewed at each meeting of the Committee. 
This ensures it remains up to date and items that have been completed or are 
no longer relevant or appropriate can be removed. 

8.2 The proposed programme takes into account that additional items may come 
to scrutiny’s attention throughout the year. For example, items identified on 
the Executive Forward Plan as pre-decision scrutiny, or items that are 
triggered via a mechanism that Overview and Scrutiny is responsible for 
facilitating, such as Call In or Councillor Call for Action. 

Page 36



8.3 It is considered that the Committee as a body can agree to add items to their 
Work Programme. However in addition, Under the Local Government Act 
2000, any elected Member has the right to request that any item relevant to 
the Committee’s remit is placed on the agenda and discussed.

8.4 The Constitution states that a request for an agenda item should be forwarded 
to the Scrutiny and Policy Officer who will co-ordinate a discussion between 
the Overview and Scrutiny Chair, CMT and the Monitoring Officer to 
determine its legitimacy. If accepted it will be prioritised and scheduled on the 
Work Programme. If an item is rejected as not being within the remit of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee the decision for that and the reasons will 
be reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Members are also able 
to discuss the decision and reasons with the Chair directly. 

8.5 A form for suggesting items for the Work Programme is proposed at Appendix 
3. 

8.6 It is important that potential items are addressed in this way to support the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to deliver and manage a focused Work 
Programme with worthwhile outcomes for the Council and local communities.  

9.0 Monitoring Outcomes 

9.1 Recommendations and outcomes arising from Work Programme items will be 
monitored and reported regularly to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
until Members are satisfied that they can be closed or no further action is 
needed. 

10.0 Recommendations

10.1 That the development of the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme is 
noted

10.2 That it is noted that the Work Programme Prioritisation Protocol has been 
applied throughout the Work Programme’s development;

10.3 That feedback from the LGA Peer Review of Overview and Scrutiny in relation 
to the Work Programme is noted;

10.4 That standard items at section 4 of the report are noted and agreed;

10.5 That the Committee considers the following options in relation to performance 
scrutiny and budget scrutiny:

a)That these items are considered quarterly in the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or

Page 37



b)That a small separate working group is established by the Committee which 
meets quarterly to consider performance and budget scrutiny and reports to 
the main committee;

10.6 That provision is made on the Work Programme for pre-scrutiny and/or urgent 
items

10.7 That the long list of suggested Work Programme topics at Appendix 1 is 
noted;

10.8 That the final draft Work Programme at Appendix 2 is considered and agreed; 

10.9 That the work programme is reviewed and updated at each Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Jessica Hall
Scrutiny and Policy Officer

Page 38



Appendix 1 

Work Programme Pool – 2017-18 

Report to OSC Chairs – 8 March 2017 

The long list was reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Chairs on 8 March 2017 and subject to discussions at a Scrutiny Member Workshop on 
7 April 2017.

The following items are considered to be standing items and will be included as standard. 

Standing Item Format Comments Reasons to include Reasons to 
exclude 

1 Forward Plan Committee/Chairs To be placed on each 
agenda with OSCs 
identifying opportunities for 
pre-scrutiny and post 
scrutiny. Executive minutes 
will be included on agenda 
as previously requested by 
the OSCs. 

Supports statutory 
remit 

2 Call In (not a Standing Item but a 
responsibility of OSC to facilitate) 

See Constitution Call In has tight timescales 
and procedural rules. 
Recent Executive decisions 
will be included on each 
OSC agenda – Members 
are responsible for 
monitoring Executive 
decisions as they are made. 

Supports statutory 
remit 

P
age 39



Standing Item Format Comments Reasons to include Reasons to 
exclude 

3 Financial/Budget Scrutiny 
(Process/Risks) 

Committee/Quarterly/Chairs Quarterly reporting to be 
included on the Corporate 
OSC agenda. Training on 
how to undertake financial 
and budget scrutiny to be 
arranged post review. 
Members to note financial 
scrutiny to be embedded 
across all scrutiny 
work/review pieces. 

Corporate  

4 Performance Scrutiny (Council Plan 
delivery) 

Committee/Quarterly/Chairs Quarterly reporting to be 
included on both agendas. 
OSC to identify areas of 
concern in relation to 
performance and delivery of 
key strategies. Training on 
performance scrutiny to be 
arranged post review. 

Corporate 

5 Work programmes and 
recommendations/outcomes tracker 

Committee/Chairs 
The Work programme 
should be closely monitored 
by the Chairs. Any Member 
can request additional items 
as per the Constitution. A 
recommendations/outcomes 
tracker will be introduced. 

Recording of 
outcomes and 
measuring value

6 Task and Finish Group Updates Committee Any ongoing review/TFG 
will report back to the parent 
committee at each meeting 

To be updated on work 
of the Committee’s 
Task and Finish 
Groups  

P
age 40



Standing Item Format Comments Reasons to include Reasons to 
exclude 

7 Community Safety Partnership Committee Statutory Responsibility to 
scrutinise the CSP. 

Statutory 

Suggestions 2017-18 – Longlist 

Proposed Topic Description Reasons to include Comments Shortlisted by Members 
for Work programme 
(Y/N)

1 Enforcement Policy Review of the 
corporate wide 
enforcement policy and 
its implementation 

Wide interest in 
enforcement recently – 
policy 
review/implementation 
and ensure consistent 
approach

Enforcement applies 
across a number of 
service areas and has an 
impact on the wider 
Allerdale community. 
There is a need to 
consider how the Council 
applies enforcement 
policy across the service 
areas. 

Yes 

2 Development of Grounds 
Maintenance and Waste Contract 

Overview and 
monitoring of the 
development of the 
new contract.

Corporate 
Significant contract/area 
of expenditure, risk and 
community impact 

The contract represents a 
significant area of service 
delivery and expenditure 
for the Council and has a 
wide impact on 
communities across the 
Borough. 

Yes 

P
age 41



Proposed Topic Description Reasons to include Comments Shortlisted by Members 
for Work programme 
(Y/N)

3 Preparing for Brexit and its potential 
impact on the delivery of the 
Growth Strategy, the Manufacturing 
Industry and Tourism in Allerdale.  

Preparing for the 
impact of Brexit on 
Allerdale specifically 
the Tourism industry 
and EU nationals 
working in it

Current issue with 
widespread policy and 
economic implications for 
Allerdale and its 
industries. 

The triggering of Article 
50 will potentially lead to 
significant social and 
economic implications for 
Allerdale.

Yes, to be considered in the 
context of other work 
programme items until the 
national policy direction is 
clearer. 
E.g Scrutiny of the Growth 
Strategy, Tourism and 
Manufacturing 

4 Examination of issues affecting 
young people around deprivation 
and how the Council can target 
these young people.  

Tackling Poverty Strategy and 
Action Plan 

Requested at 
Executive on 11 
January 2017 in 
response to 
Community OSC’s 
review on Youth 
Unemployment. 

Requested by Executive 
as an area of potential 
added value 

This could be addressed 
by Overview and 
Scrutiny’s role in 
developing the Tackling 
Poverty Strategy and 
Action Plan and ways in 
which this can be 
delivered in Allerdale. 
Tackling Inequality is a 
key theme of the Council 
Plan. 

Yes, incorporated into the 
Tackling Poverty Strategy 
and Action Plan. 

P
age 42



Proposed Topic Description Reasons to include Comments Shortlisted by Members 
for Work programme 
(Y/N)

5 Absence Management Historical item. Data on 
absence management 

The Council has an 
absence management 
policy which is 
implemented by 
Managers. Absence 
Management data can be 
requested from HR. 

No

6 Customer Access and Experience

Customer Contact Arrangements 

Customer Access and 
experience and how 
customers contact the 
Council is considered 
as part of the Council’s 
Transformation 
programme. 

One Member has 
raised concerns about 
customers not able to 
get through on the 
telephone 

Customer Access and 
Experience is key to the 
Council Plan theme of 
creating a sustainable 
business which aims to 
develop a commercially 
focused organisation 
committed to delivering 
high quality, sustainable 
services to the people, 
communities and 
businesses of Allerdale.  

Customer Access and 
experience will be central 
to delivery of the 
Council’s transformation 
agenda. 

Yes P
age 43



Proposed Topic Description Reasons to include Comments Shortlisted by Members 
for Work programme 
(Y/N)

7 Polling Stations Arrangements Historical item 
Feeling that polling 
stations are not 
accessible and there 
should be more

Electoral Commission 
guidelines provide a 
framework for the 
provision of polling 
stations.
Given the frequency of 
elections it ought to be 
considered whether this 
is a scrutiny exercise. 

Review of polling station 
access to be carried out 
by Elections Team in next 
12 months. 

No 

8 ESIF (European Funding) A significant amount of 
European funding will 
be spent in the 
Borough via the LEP in 
the coming years to 
deliver employability 
initiatives. Scrutiny are 
asked to fulfil an 
overview and 
monitoring role 

Significant strategic 
implications and central 
to delivery of several 
elements of the Council 
Plan 

Ties in with other 
proposed Work 
Programme items 

Yes, incorporated with other 
key items on the Work 
Programme including the 
Growth Strategy and the 
Tackling Poverty Strategy. 

Task and Finish Group

P
age 44



Proposed Topic Description Reasons to include Comments Shortlisted by Members 
for Work programme 
(Y/N)

9 Outside Bodies Historical item 
Feeling that reporting 
back of outside body 
involvement is not 
fulfilled. 

Governance procedures 
already in place.  

No 

10 Tackling dementia To consider how the 
council is tackling 
dementia 

Supports improving 
health and wellbeing, a 
key theme of the Council 
Plan 

The Council is working 
towards being a dementia 
friendly organisation and 
a number of staff have 
already taken part in 
training sessions

No, however Members may 
want to reflect on this when 
scrutinising other areas. 

11 Programme Office – Update Requested to have a 
half yearly monitoring 
role

TBC 

12 Local Plan Part 2 Delivery Scrutiny of delivery of 
key strategy 

Key statutory plan 
supporting Growth 
Strategy and wider 
Council Plan

Yes – subject to timescales 
in 2017/18. Can be 
considered alongside 
scrutiny of the Growth 
Strategy

13 Housing Strategy Delivery Monitoring of delivery 
of key strategy 

Key statutory plan which 
supports delivery of 
Growth Strategy and 
Council Plan 

Yes –  to be consolidated 
with scrutiny of the Growth 
Strategy/ Performance 
Monitoring 

P
age 45



Proposed Topic Description Reasons to include Comments Shortlisted by Members 
for Work programme 
(Y/N)

14 Tackling Poverty Strategy Monitoring delivery of 
key strategy 

Yes – as above to be 
consolidated with 
deprivation and issues 
affecting young people

15 Budget Items Impact of changes to 
New Homes Bonus; 
Business Rate 
Retention and 
Reducing Revenue 
Support Grant and 
Growth 

Significant financial 
pressures facing the 
Council which will impact 
on how the Council ca

Yes – standing item to be 
carried out by separate 
Scrutiny Working Group 

16 Growth Strategy Scrutiny of delivery of 
the Growth Strategy 

Supports the overall 
Council Plan with the 
delivery of many 
priorities dependent on 
the delivery of the 
Growth Strategy 

Yes 

P
age 46



Appendix 2 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2017-18 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meetings

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item – 
opportunities for 
pre-scrutiny. 

Head of 
Governance  

Leader of the Council Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

23 June 
2017 

Work Programme 
Development 

Governance A report outlining 
how the Work 
Programme has 
been developed 
and seeking 
approval for the 
establishment of a 
Budget and 
Performance 

Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer  

N/a Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

P
age 47



Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Scrutiny Working 
Group 

Partnership Scrutiny 
(Housing Provider) Task 
and Finish Group 
Feedback and 
Recommendations 

Member/Local   
Concern 

Feedback Report 
from the 
Partnership Scrutiny 
Task and Finish 
Group (carry over 
from 2016/17 Work 
Programme

Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Executive Member 
for Housing, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Task and Finish 
Group 
Member  

Tackling Poverty Task 
and Finish Group 

Tackling Inequality

Improving Health 
and Wellbeing  

A report seeking 
the Committee’s 
agreement to set 
up a Task and Finish 
Group to consider 
the Council’s 
Tackling Poverty 
Strategy,  appoint a 
Chair of the Task 
and Finish Group 
and agree Terms of 
Reference

Senior Policy and 
Performance Officer  

Leader of the Council Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

P
age 48



Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Scrutiny of the West 
Cumbria Community 
Safety Partnership

Statutory Question and 
answer session on 
the work of the 
West Cumbria 
Community Safety 
Partnership. To be 
attended by Cllr P 
Tibble (Chair) and 
Lisa Elder 
(Partnership Co-
ordinator)

Legal and Licensing 
Manager 

Executive Member 
for Governance and 
Legal Resources 

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

11 August 
2017 

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance 

Leader of the Council Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

P
age 49



Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Work Programme 
Update 

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

N/a Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Grounds Maintenance 
Task and Finish Group 

Creating a 
Sustainable 
Business 

Enhancing our 
Towns 

Improving Health 
and Wellbeing 

A report seeking 
the Committee’s 
agreement to set 
up a Task and Finish 
Group to consider 
the Council’s 
Tackling Poverty 
Strategy and Action 
Plan, appoint a 
Chair of the Task 
and Finish Group 
and agree Terms of 
Reference. 

Head of Community 
Services 

Executive Member 
for Locality and 
Environmental 
Quality 

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

P
age 50



Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Task and Finish Group 
Update Reports 

Governance To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Groups 

Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance 

Leader of the Council 

Scrutiny of delivery of 
the Housing Strategy 

Strengthening our 
economy 

Tackling Inequality 

Improving Health 
and Wellbeing 

Questions and 
answers to Portfolio 
Holder and Officers 
on delivery of 
themes outlined in 
the Housing 
Strategy.

Head of Housing 
and Health 

Executive Member 
for Housing, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

22 
September 
2017 

Work Programme 
Update 

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair and Deputy 
Chair of Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee  

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

P
age 51



Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Task and Finish Group 
Update Reports 

Governance To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Groups 

Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group 

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance  

Leader of the Council 
Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

3 November 
2017 

Budget Development 
2018-19

Creating a 
sustainable 
business 

To overview and 
scrutinise the 
budget setting 
process for 2018-19

Head of Financial 
Services 

Executive Member 
for Corporate 
Resources 

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

P
age 52



Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Scrutiny of delivery of 
the Growth Strategy 

Strengthening our 
economy 

Tackling Inequality 

Enhancing our 
towns 

Creating a 
sustainable 
business 

Questions and 
answers to Portfolio 
Holder and Officers 
on delivery of 
themes outlined in 
the Growth 
Strategy and how 
the Council can 
support 
manufacturing and 
tourism in the 
context of Brexit

Head of Economic 
Growth

Deputy Leader with 
Economic Growth 
portfolio 

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Work Programme 
Update 

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Task and Finish Group 
Updates 

Governance To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Groups

Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of Leader of the Council Chair and 

P
age 53



Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Governance Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

Scrutiny of delivery of 
the Customer Access 
Strategy 

Creating a 
sustainable 
business 

Questions and 
answers to the 
Portfolio Holder 
and Officers on 
delivery of themes 
outlined in the 
Growth Strategy

Head of Customer 
and Commissioning, 
OD ＆ 
Transformation 
Head of Customer 
and Commissioning, 
OD & 
Transformation

Executive Member 
for Transformation 

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

15 
December 
2017

Work Programme 
Update

Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

P
age 54



Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Forward Plan Governance Standing  Item Head of 
Governance 

Leader of the Council 
Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

Budget Development 
2018-19

Creating a 
sustainable 
business 

To overview and 
scrutinise the 
budget setting 
process for 2018-19 

Head of Financial 
Services 

Executive Member 
for Corporate 
Resources 

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Work Programme 
Update 

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

26 January 
2018

Task and Finish Group 
Updates 

Governance To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Group 

Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group

P
age 55



Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance

Leader of the Council 

Grounds Maintenance 
Contract Scrutiny – Final 
Report (and conclusion 
of Task and Finish 
Group) 

Creating a 
sustainable 
business

Enhancing our 
Towns 

Improving Health 
and Wellbeing

Pre-Scrutiny of final 
proposals before 
Executive decision

Head of Community 
Services

Executive Member 
for Locality and 
Environmental 
Quality

9 March 
2018

Budget 2018-19 Creating a 
sustainable 
business 

To overview and 
scrutinise the 
budget setting 
process for 2018-19

Head of Financial 
Services 

Executive Member 
for Corporate 
Resources 

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

P
age 56



Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme/Theme 

Further 
Information 

Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead 
Scrutiny 
Member 

Work Programme 
Update 

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Task and Finish Group  
Updates 

Governance To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Group

Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group

Forward Plan Governance Standing Item Head of 
Governance 

Leader of the Council 

Work Programme 
Updates 

Governance Standing Item Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair and 
Deputy Chair 
of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

20 April 
2018 

Task and Finish Group 
Updates 

Governance To receive progress 
reports from any 
Task and Finish 
Group

Scrutiny and Policy 
Officer 

Chair of the 
Task and Finish 
Group

P
age 57



Task and Finish Group/Reviews 
Topic Further Information Estimated Start date

1 Tackling Poverty Terms of reference 
proposed for agreement at 
OSC on 30 June 17. 

June 2017

2 Grounds Maintenance Contract Scrutiny of new contract August 2017

3 European Social Fund (ESF) 
Scrutiny of how the ESF 
contracts are being 
delivered in Allerdale and 
Cumbria and identify any 
barriers to delivery. 

January 2018

4 Enforcement Policy Review 
Review of the Council’s 
Corporate Enforcement 
Policy and its application 
across Council services 

To be confirmed 

Topic Proposals/Additions in year 
Proposed Topic Proposer Date received Reason for Work Programme request 

P
age 58



Overview & Scrutiny Topic proposal form

Please complete this form if you have a proposal for a topic that you would 
like the Overview & Scrutiny Committee to consider.

Please return the completed form to scrutiny@allerdale.gov.uk.

Name of Proposer:

Tel No:                                                      Email:

Date:

Proposed Topic for Scrutiny

 

Reasons/Evidence for 
selecting topic

(for example, the subject is 
included in Council’s Corporate 
Plan/Priorities, the matter is a 
concern in your area etc)

Key Issues for investigation

(for example cost, effectiveness, 
clarifying responsibility etc)

What are the key objectives 
that this scrutiny could 
achieve

(for example improved service 
delivery, value for money etc, 
improvements to local 
communities.) The objectives 
should be specific, measurable, 
achievable, relevant and timely.
 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Allerdale Borough Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 23 June 2017 

Allerdale Tackling Poverty Strategy & Action Plan – Appointment of a Task and 
Finish Group 

The Reason for the Decision At Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
on 7 April 2017, it was agreed that Overview and 
Scrutiny would place the Tackling Poverty 
Strategy and Action Plan onto the Work 
Programme. This topic underpins a key theme 
and strategy of the Council Plan 2015 – 2019.

The report seeks agreement from the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to establish a Task and 
Finish Group, appoint a Chair and set the terms 
of reference. 

Summary of options considered Options considered include:

The Committee establishing a Task and Finish 
Group to carry out a piece of pre scrutiny on a 
key Council Plan theme and Strategy. This is the 
recommended option;

Address the piece of scrutiny work in the main 
Committee. However it is considered that the 
topic requires a review which requires a level of 
detail and time not possible to achieve in a 
Committee Meeting.

Recommendations 1. That a Task and Finish Group is 
established by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to consider the draft Tackling 
Poverty Strategy and Action Plan 2017-
2020;

2. That the Committee appoint a Chairperson 
(a current Member of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee) who will be 
responsible for managing the Task and 
Finish Group and reporting its findings to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 

3. That the Committee agrees the 
membership of the Task and Finish Group;

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



4. That the Committee agrees that the Task 
and Finish Group identifies co-opted 
Members at the scoping stage;

5. That the Committee agrees the Task and 
Finish Group’s Terms of Reference at 4.1;

6. That the Task and Finish Group follows the 
terms of reference and keeps the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee updated; 

7. That the Task and Finish Group scopes 
the piece of work applying the scoping 
exercise template at Appendix 1;

8. That the Task and Finish Group reports its 
findings, conclusions and 
recommendations to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

Financial /  Resource Implications The Task and Finish Group will require Members 
and Officer resources. Members should be aware 
that support of Council partners may also be 
required and this will be identified at scoping 
stage. 

Legal / Governance Implications The Task and Finish Group will be required to 
report its work, findings and any 
recommendations it makes to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for approval. 

Community Safety Implications There are no direct implications. 

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

There are no direct implications.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

This will be considered at scoping stage. 

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

The Task and Finish Group will contribute to the 
Tackling Inequality theme of the Council Plan 
which commits the Council to aim to reduce 
poverty and support people facing financial 
difficulties. The draft strategy also contributes to 
the Strengthening our Economy theme. 

Is this a Key Decision No

Page 62



Portfolio Holder Councillor Alan Smith 

Lead Scrutiny Member Councillor Janet Farebrother (Current Chair) 

Lead Officer Alex Fitzgerald 
Senior Policy and Performance Officer
01900 702719
Alex.Fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk 

Report Implications (Please delete where applicable).

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial N Employment (internal) N

Legal N Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers: Task and Finish Group Protocol
Minutes of the Community Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee – 7 April 2017

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At the Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 7 April 2017, it was 
agreed that the Draft Tackling Poverty Strategy and Action Plan would be 
considered as a pre-decision scrutiny item on the new Work Programme. This 
was agreed on the basis that it is a priority area for the Council which requires 
development. 

1.2 Members are asked to agree that a Task and Finish Group is established to 
carry out this work and provide feedback to the Executive on options for taking 
this forward. 

2.0 Background to the Draft Tackling Poverty Strategy and Action Plan 
2017-2020

2.1 The current Council Plan 2015-19 sets out the Council’s vision and priorities 
for Allerdale. Tackling inequality and poverty is identified as a key priority and 
the Council has undertaken to develop an updated Tackling Poverty Strategy 
as part of the Council Plan Delivery Plan. 

3.0 Task and Finish Group Membership 

Page 63



3.1 Following the meeting of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
on 7 April 2017, an email was sent to all non-Executive Members seeking 
expressions of interest in participating in a Task and Finish Group. 

The following Members have indicated they are interested in participating: 

 Cllr J Farebrother
 Cllr B Finlay  
 Cllr M Fitzgerald
 Cllr M Grainger
 Cllr H Harrington
 Cllr B Miskelly
 Cllr P Tibble 

3.2 The Committee is asked to appoint a Chair and agree the Task and Finish 
Group Membership. 

3.3 The Committee is asked to agree that the Task and Finish Group considers 
whether to co-opt any further participants at the scoping stage.

4. Terms of Reference

4.1 The Committee is responsible for setting Terms of Reference for the Task and 
Finish Group. Terms of reference are used to guide and focus the Task and 
Finish Group and support the delivery of priorities. The following terms of 
reference are proposed:

 Consider and scrutinise the draft Tackling Poverty Strategy and Action 
Plan

 Identify what is currently being done by the Council and partners to 
tackle poverty in the Borough

 Make recommendations for future actions by the Council and partners 
to tackle poverty in the Borough

4.2 Members are asked to consider the proposed terms of reference and whether 
any further should be added.

4.3 Members are asked to note that the Task and Finish Group will scope the 
review based on the terms of reference using scoping template at Appendix 1.

5.0 Recommendations

5.1 It is recommended that:

5.1.1 A Task and Finish Group is established by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to consider the draft Tackling Poverty Strategy and Action Plan 
2017-2020;

Page 64



5.1.2 That the Committee appoint a Chairperson (a current Member of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee) who will be responsible for managing the 
Task and Finish Group and reporting its findings back to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee; 

5.1.3 That the Committee agrees the membership of the Task and Finish Group

5.1.4 The Committee agrees that the Task and Finish Group identifies co-opted 
Members at the scoping stage;

5.1.5 That the Committee agrees the Task and Finish Group’s Terms of Reference 
at 4.1; 

5.1.6 That the Task and Finish Group follows the terms of reference and keeps the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee updated; 

5.1.7 That the Task and Finish Group scopes the piece of work applying the 
scoping exercise template at Appendix 1;

5.1.8 That the Task and Finish Group reports its findings, conclusions and 
recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

6.0 Conclusion

6.1 Members are advised that a Task and Finish Group is the most appropriate 
way to address this piece of pre-decision scrutiny work. The Task and Finish 
Group setting will allow Members to manage the review and allocate the level 
of detail needed to deliver timely feedback, recommendations and outcomes 
for the Council and local people. 

Jessica Hall
Scrutiny and Policy Officer 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes , 07/04/2017 Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes , 24/02/2017 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes , 21/04/2017 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

	6 LGA Overview and Scrutiny Peer Review Feedback Report and Summary of the Stronger Scrutiny Workshop
	Final Allerdale Scrutiny Review Report
	workshop feedback May 2017.docx

	7 Work Programme 2017-18
	WP Appendix 1 - Work Programme Pool.docx
	WP Appendix 2 - Draft Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2017V0.1.docx
	WP Appendix 3 -Scrutiny Topic suggestion form.docx

	9 Allerdale Tackling Poverty Strategy & Action Plan – Appointment of a Task and Finish Group

